
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
OCTOBER 24, 2022 

Page 1 - Council Meeting Minutes, October 24, 2022 

DATE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, CITY OF WOODBURN, COUNTY OF 
MARION, STATE OF OREGON, OCTOBER 24, 2022 
 
CONVENED   The meeting convened at 7:00 p.m. with Mayor Swenson presiding. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Mayor Swenson Present  
Councilor Carney Present  
Councilor Cornwell Present  
Councilor Schaub Present 
Councilor Swanson Present 
Councilor Puente Present   
Councilor Cabrales Present   
 
Staff Present: City Administrator Derickson, City Attorney Shields, Assistant City Administrator 
Row, Police Chief Pilcher, Community Development Director Kerr, Finance Director Turley, 
Human Resources Director Gregg, Economic Development Director Johnk, Special Projects 
Director Wakely, Community Services Director Cuomo, Officer Ponce, Public Affairs and 
Communications Coordinator Moore, City Recorder Pierson 
  
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Mayor Swenson announced that City Hall and the Library will be closed on November 11 in 
observance of Veterans Day. Transit and the Aquatic Center will be open normal hours. 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
Non-Discretionary Investment Advisory Services – Lauren Brant, Managing Director at PFM 
Asset Management, provided a presentation on PFM Asset Management and how they will provide 
investment services and assist the City in maximizing its return on investment and ensuring the 
investment policy of the City is followed. 
 
Safety Compass/Center for Hope & Safety -    D. Howden with the Center for Hope and Safety 
provided training on sexual assault dynamics. Esther Nelson-Garrett, founder of Safety Compass 
provided a presentation on sex trafficking.  
 
Woodburn Police Department Purple Heart Award - Police Chief Marty Pilcher awarded the 
Woodburn Police Department’s Purple Heart Award to Officer Ponce for the injuries he sustained 
on April 25, 2022, while working with the Marion County Interagency SWAT team.            
 
Mayor Swenson called for a short break.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA  
A. Woodburn City Council Meeting minutes of October 10, 2022, 
B. Woodburn City Council Meeting Executive Session minutes of October 10, 2022, 
C. City Council Holiday Meeting Schedule, 
D. Liquor License Application for Casa De Caldos, 
E. Acceptance of a Public Water Line Easement at 225 S. Pacific Highway, Woodburn, OR 

97071 (Tax Lots 051W18DA01100 and 051W18DA01101), 
 

1



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
OCTOBER 24, 2022 

Page 2 - Council Meeting Minutes, October 24, 2022 

F. Crime Statistics through September 2022. 
Carney/Schaub… adopt the Consent Agenda. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
COUNCIL BILL NO. 3197 - A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENTAL 
BUDGET AND MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR FY 2022-2023 
Carney introduced Council Bill No. 3197. City Recorder Pierson read the bill by title only since 
there were no objections from the Council. City Administrator Derickson provided a staff report. 
On roll call vote for final passage, the bill passed unanimously. Mayor Swenson declared Council 
Bill No. 3197 duly passed.  
 
COUNCIL BILL NO. 3198 - A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF 
APPROPRIATIONS WITHIN THE GENERAL FUND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2022-
2023 
Carney introduced Council Bill No. 3198. City Recorder Pierson read the bill by title only since 
there were no objections from the Council. City Administrator Derickson provided a staff report. 
On roll call vote for final passage, the bill passed unanimously. Mayor Swenson declared Council 
Bill No. 3198 duly passed.  
 
SALE OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT 11842 NE CHATEAU DR. 
Assistant City Administrator Row provided a staff report. Carney/Cabrales… authorize the City 
Administrator to enter into a purchase and sale agreement and transfer title of City owned property 
located at 11842 Chateau Dr. NE, Woodburn, OR 97071 to Severo Trapala by means of a Special 
Warranty Deed. The motion passed unanimously.  
 
AWARD A CONTRACT FOR NON-DISCRETIONARY INVESTMENT ADVISORY 
SERVICES 
Finance Director Turley provided staff report. Carney/Schaub… award a Contract for Non-
Discretionary Investment Advisory Services to PFM Asset Management LLC and authorize the 
City Administrator to sign the Agreement. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
BRIEFING ON THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR’S APPROVAL OF A 
DESIGN REVIEW AND PROPERTY LINE ADJUSTMENT APPLICATION PACKAGE 
FOR AWARE FOODBANK AT 152 ARTHUR STREET (DR 22-10 & PLA 22-06) 
Community Development Director Kerr provided a staff report. Council declined to call this item 
up.  
 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
The City Administrator reported the following:  

• Jamie and Renata are in Bend at the Oregon Business Conference and are receiving the 
Brownfield Award on behalf of the City for the environmental work done downtown.   

• Provided Council with a flyer on the Family Resource Center which provides information 
on the services provided there.  

 
COUNCIL REPORTS 
Councilor Puente asked how we can get our local roads maintained and taken care of and City 
Administrator Derickson stated that the City has a road department, and a road budget that is 
budgeted every year based on our capital plan and projected projects and that the City goes out 
and rates streets, and prioritizes them based on certain criteria. The City then schedules 
improvements as funding becomes available for them and if there's a specific issue, such as a 
pothole develops or other things develop that pose a threat, the City does try to address those when 

2



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
OCTOBER 24, 2022 

Page 3 - Council Meeting Minutes, October 24, 2022 

we become aware of them.  Councilor Puente went on to say that Legion Park is looking beautiful 
and noted that the high school football team is playing for the conference championship on Friday. 
 
Councilor Schaub thanked staff and that she feels proud when talking to constituents.  
 
Councilor Swanson stated that she also hears concerns about the roads in the older neighborhoods 
and added that one of her primary concerns is the lack of affordable housing in Woodburn. She 
added that tonight was monumental and encouraged her about the people who are heroes and put 
their lives on the line for us every day and we should thank them every time we get the chance. 
 
Councilor Carney congratulated Councilor Cabrales for arranging the sex trafficking presentation 
that took place. 
 
Councilor Cabrales thanked staff and stated that she looked forward to the trick or treating event 
that will be taking place.  
 
Councilor Cornwell stated that Jamie mentioned to her that without Scott’s leadership the project 
we won the award for would not have gone so smoothly. She added that it was nice to have Bob 
back.  
 
Mayor Swenson thanked those that supported Officer Ponce.  He noted that the Council was invited 
to the Marion County Reentry Initiative Second Chance Breakfast, Thursday at 7:00 a.m. at the 
Kaiser Community Center.  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Carney/Puente… move to adjourn. The motion passed unanimously. Mayor Swenson adjourned 
the meeting at 9:00 p.m. 

 
 
 
APPROVED                                                            

                            ERIC SWENSON, MAYOR 
 
 
  
ATTEST                                                                               
                 Heather Pierson, City Recorder 
                 City of Woodburn, Oregon 

3



Agenda Item 
 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ______ City Attorney ______ Finance _____ 

 November 14, 2022 
 
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 
 
THRU: Martin Pilcher, Chief of Police 
   
FROM: Keith Kimberlin, Lieutenant  
 
SUBJECT: Liquor License Application  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Recommend that the OLCC approve the Liquor License Application for Super 
Mercado Las Tarascas. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Applicant: Super Mercado Las Tarascas Corp. 
  397 N. Front Street 
  Woodburn, OR 97071 
  503-981-1441 
   
Point of  
Contact:  Ruben Escott Villa 
  397 N Front Street  
  Woodburn, OR 97071 
  971-470-1078 
   
   
Business: Super Mercado Las Tarascas 
  397 N. Front Street 
  Woodburn, OR 97071 
  503-981-1441 
 
Owner(s): Ruben Escott Villa 
 

4



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
November 14, 2022 
Page 2 
 
 
License Type(s):   
 
Off Premises- May sell and serve beer, wine, and cider for consumption off the 
licensed premises. May sell beer, wine, and cider in a securely covered 
“growler” for consumption off the licensed premises.  
 
On October 13, 2022, the Woodburn Police Department received an 
application for Off-Premises liquor license for Super Mercado Las Tarascas.  The 
business currently operates as a store with a 30 seat restaurant inside it, located 
at 397 N. Front Street in Woodburn, OR 97071. This location is at the corner of N. 
Front Street and W. Hayes and backs up to the downtown city park.  
 
The hours of operation are 7 AM to 10 PM Monday to Sunday.  There is no 
entertainment listed for the location.  The Woodburn Police Department has not 
received any communication from the public or surrounding businesses in 
support of or against the proposed change. 
   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Police Department has completed a background investigation of Super 
Mercado Las Tarascas Corp., and the listed owner, Ruben Escott Villa, through 
various police databases and business related databases.  Ruben Escott Villa 
holds a valid driver’s license and no other items of concern were located during 
the check. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 

5



Agenda Item 
 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ______ City Attorney ______ Finance _____ 

 November 14, 2022 
 
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 
 
THRU: Marty Pilcher, Chief of Police 
   
FROM: Keith Kimberlin, Lieutenant  
 
SUBJECT: Liquor License Application  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Recommend that the OLCC approve the Liquor License Application for 
Woodburn Lanes. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Applicant: Titles Machine LLC 
  435 North Pacific Highway 
  Woodburn, OR 97071 
  503-981-1500   
Point of  
Contact:  William Patrick Machin 
  1937 Pacific Court SE 
  Stayton, OR 97383 
  503-302-5660 
   
   
Business: Woodburn Lanes 
  435 North Pacific Highway 
  Woodburn, OR 97071 
  503-981-1500 
 
Owner(s): William Partick Machin 
 

6



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
November 14, 2022 
Page 2 
 
 
License Type(s):   
 
Full On-Premises Commercial- May sell and serve by the drink at retail to 
consumers for consumption on the licensed premises: Distilled spirits, malt 
beverages (beer), wine, and cider.  
 
May sell at retail for off licensed premises consumption: malt beverages, wine, 
and cider in factory sealed containers for take-out and delivery. May sell mixed 
drinks and servings of wine by the drink to consumers for consumption off 
licensed premises.  
 
On October 26, 2022, the Woodburn Police Department received an 
application for a Full On-Premises liquor license for Woodburn Lanes.  The 
business currently operates as a bowling alley with a small walk up lounge and 
restaurant, located at 435 N. Pacific Highway in Woodburn, OR 97071.  The 
seating count for the restaurant is 30 and the lounge is an additional 30.  
 
The hours of operation are 10 AM to 10 PM Tuesday and Wednesday, and 10 AM 
to 11 PM Thursday to Monday.  There is no entertainment listed for the location 
except Coin-operated games and Video Lottery Machines.  The Woodburn 
Police Department has not received any communication from the public or 
surrounding businesses in support of or against the proposed change. 
   
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Police Department has completed a background investigation of 
Woodburn Lanes, Titles Machine LLC, and the listed owner, William Patrick 
Machin, through various police databases and business related databases.  
William Machin holds a valid driver’s license and no other items of concern were 
located during the check. The business has changed ownership and is the 
reason for the new application. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 

7



 

CITY OF WOODBURN 
Community Development Department 
                                       MEMORANDUM 
 
270 Montgomery Street        Woodburn, Oregon 97071          (503) 982-5246  
 
Date:  November 3, 2022 
   
To:   Chris Kerr, Community Development Director 
               
From:  Melissa Gitt, Building Official         
 
Subject: Building Activity for October 2022  
 
 2020 2021 2022 

No. Dollar Amount No. Dollar Amount No. Dollar Amount 
 

Single-Family Residential 0 $0 9 $2,422,594 6 $1,526,414 
Multi-Family Residential 0 $0 9 $14,377,134 0 $0 
Assisted Living Facilities 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 
Residential Adds & Alts 4 $31,370 0 $0 16 $198,220 
Industrial 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 
Commercial 2 $154,000 6 $533,200 8 $690,395 
Signs and Fences 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 
Manufactured Homes 1 $127,000 0 $0 0 $0 

TOTALS 7 $312,370 24 $17,332,928 30 $2,415,029 
Fiscal Year to Date  
(July 1 – June 30)  $6,744,416  $47,502,083  $46,529,533 

 
• Totals represent permit valuation 

    

8



Agenda Item 
 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ______ City Attorney ______ Finance _____ 

   November 14, 2022 
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 
 
FROM: Curtis Stultz, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Acceptance of a Public Utility Easement at 333 South Woodland Avenue 

from Do It Best Corporation (Tax Lot 052W110000101) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Accept a Public Utility Easement granted by Do It Best Corporation, for real property 
at 333 South Woodland Avenue, Tax Lot 052W110000101.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
As a condition of Design Review DR 22-07 and Street Exception EXCP 22-03, the 
property owners were required to either document an existing ten-foot (10’) wide 
public utility easement (PUE) along the frontage of Newberg Highway, or grant a ten-
foot PUE along the frontage.  
   
DISCUSSION: 
 
The PUE under consideration is approximately 12,528 square feet in area and generally 
ten feet in width, located along the northern portion of the property at 333 South 
Woodland Avenue.    
 
Woodburn Development Ordinance (WDO) section 3.02.01B requires a minimum five-
foot (5’) wide PUE along each lot line abutting a public street. PUE’s are reserved for 
the construction, reconstruction, operation, and maintenance of public utilities on 
private property.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
There is no cost to the City for this PUE as it is a condition of Design Review 22-07 and 
Street Exception EXCP 22-03. 
 
Attachments 
 
A copy of the recorded PUE is provided with this agenda item.  

9



Public�Utility�Easements�(Permanent)�
Page�1�of�4�
�

AFTER�RECORDING�RETURN�TO:�
�
Woodburn�City�Recorder�
City�of�Woodburn�
270�Montgomery�Street�
Woodburn,�OR� 97071�
�
�

CITY�OF�WOODBURN,�OREGON�
PUBLIC�UTILITY�EASEMENT�

�

DO� IT� BEST� CORP;� f/k/a� HARDWARE� WHOLESALERS,� INC.� an� Indiana�
corporation,�GRANTOR,�grants�to�the�CITY�OF�WOODBURN,�OREGON,�hereinafter�called�
CITY,�a�permanent�easement�and� right-of-way,� including� the�permanent� right� to� construct,�
reconstruct,�operate,�and�maintain�public�utilities�on�the�following�described�land:�

�
See�attached�Exhibit�“A”�Legal�Description�of�Permanent�Easement�and�attached�
Exhibit�“B”�Sketch�for�Legal�Description�of�Permanent�Easement�which�are�by�this�

reference�incorporated�herein.�
�
GRANTOR�reserves�the�right�to�use�the�surface�of�the�land�for�any�purpose�that�will�

not�be�inconsistent�or�interfere�with�the�use�of� the�easement�by�CITY.�No�building�or�utility�
shall�be�placed�upon,�under,�or�within�the�property�subject�to�the�foregoing�easement�during�
the�term�thereof,�however,�without�the�written�permission�of�CITY.�

�
Upon� completion� of� the� construction,� CITY� shall� restore� the� surface� of� the�

GRANTOR’S� property� to� its� original� condition� and� shall� indemnify� and� hold� GRANTOR�
harmless�against�any�and�all� loss,�cost,�or�damage�arising�out�of� the�exercise�of� the�rights�
granted�herein.�

�
The�true�consideration�of�this�conveyance�is�Ten�Dollars�($10.00),�and�other�valuable�

consideration,�the�receipt�of�which�is�acknowledged�by�GRANTOR.�
�
GRANTOR�covenants�to�CITY�that�GRANTOR�is�lawfully�seized�in�fee�simple�of�the�

above-granted�premises,�free�from�all�encumbrances�and�that�GRANTOR�and�its�heirs�and�
personal�representatives�shall�warrant�and�forever�defend�the�said�premises�and�every�part�
thereof�to�CITY�against�the�lawful�claims�and�demands�of�all�persons�claiming�by,�through,�or�
under�GRANTOR.�

�
DATED�this�� day�of�July,�2022.�

�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�

�

10



11

pas
Textbox
Page 2 of 5



12

pas
Textbox
Page 3 of 5



13

pas
Textbox
Page 4 of 5



14

pas
Textbox
Page 5 of 5



Agenda Item 
 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ______ City Attorney ______ Finance _____ 

   November 14, 2022 
 
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council (acting in its capacity as the 

Local Contract Review Board) through City Administrator 
 
FROM: Jesse Cuomo, Community Services Director 
 
SUBJECT: Parks and Recreation Master Plan Update 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Award a contract for the Parks and Recreation Master Plan Update Project to 
Conservation Technix Inc. in the amount of $139,590.00 and authorize the City 
Administrator to execute the agreement.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The existing Parks and Recreation Comprehensive Master Plan was completed 
and adopted in July 2009.  Since that time, many of the assumptions the plan 
was based upon have changed.  The purpose of this plan update is to evaluate 
the current system and develop a well-planned systemic approach to 
managing community parks and recreation needs, utilizing current industry 
standards, while recognizing the unique needs of the Woodburn community.  A 
comprehensive public input process to inform the plan development. 
 
This project will culminate in the development of recommendations intended to 
eliminate current deficiencies in the park system, while also meeting the current 
community need and planning for future growth in the community.  The Parks 
Capital Improvement Program will be updated based on the recommendations 
of the plan. If an update of the SDC methodology is necessary, that project is 
anticipated to commence in Fiscal Year 2023-24. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Budget Committee approved this project and approved including up to 
$175,000.00 for it in the Parks CIP, to be funded entirely by Parks System 
Development Charges. 
   

15



Mayor and City Council 
November 14, 2022 
Page 2 
 
 
The City received two proposals from qualified firms in mid-October 2022.  A five-
person committee reviewed and scored the proposals.  These two firms, Berry 
Dunn and Conservation Technix Inc. were invited to make a presentation to the 
review committee.  Those presentations resulted in the committee’s unanimous 
recommendation to award the contract to Conservation Technix Inc.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The contract amount is $139,590.00. The Budget Committee approved this 
project and approved including $175,000.00 for it in the General Cap 
Construction Fund, to be funded entirely by Parks System Development 
Charges.   
 
 

16



PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT- Conservation Technix Inc.    Page 1 
Parks and Recreation Master Plan 

CITY OF WOODBURN 
PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
PARKS AND RECREATION MASTER PLAN UPDATE 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of the date first indicated on the 
signature page, by and between the City of Woodburn, an Oregon municipal corporation 
(hereinafter referred to as “CITY”), and Consertvation Technix Inc. (hereinafter referred 
to as “CONTRACTOR”). 
 
WHEREAS, CITY needs certain CONTRACTOR services; and 
 
WHEREAS, CITY wants to engage CONTRACTOR to provide these services by reason 
of its qualifications and experience; and 
 
WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR has offered to provide the required services on the terms 
and in the manner set forth herein, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED as follows: 
 
SECTION 1 – SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
The Scope of Work to be performed by CONTRACTOR under this Agreement is 
described in Exhibit A, which is attached to this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 2 – DUTIES OF CONTRACTOR 
 
A. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the quality and coordination of all work 

furnished by CONTRACTOR under this Agreement. 
 

B. CONTRACTOR represents that it is qualified with the necessary training and 
skills to furnish the services described in this Agreement. 
 

C. CONTRACTOR shall provide, at its sole expense, all equipment and materials 
necessary to perform the services described in this Agreement.   

 
D. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for employing or engaging all persons 

necessary to perform its services and will abide by all applicable State and 
Federal laws regarding the employing or engaging said persons including, but 
not limited to, tax reporting, anti-discrimination, and workers compensation. 
 

E. CONTRACTOR is engaged as an independent contractor and is responsible for 
any federal or state taxes applicable to any payments made under this 
Agreement. 
 

17



PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT- Conservation Technix Inc.    Page 2 
Parks and Recreation Master Plan 

F. CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain a valid business registration with the 
City of Woodburn. 
 

G. It is understood that Steve Duhwill be designated by Contractor as the person 
[providing services/serving as the main point of contact] to the City under this 
Agreement and that this designated person shall not be replaced without City’s 
approval. 

 
SECTION 3 – DUTIES OF CITY 
 
A. CITY shall provide CONTRACTOR the pertinent information regarding CITY’s 

requirements for the services to be provided. 
 

B. The City shall examine documents submitted by Contractor and shall render 
decisions promptly, to avoid unreasonable delay in the progress of Contractor’s 
work. 
 

C. The City certifies that sufficient funds are available and authorized for 
expenditure to finance costs of this Agreement. 
 

D. The contact person on the Project for City is designated as Jesse Cuomo, 
Community Services Director. The City shall provide written notice to Contractor 
if City changes its contact person. 

 
SECTION 4 – TERM 
 
The services to be performed under this Agreement shall commence upon execution of 
the Agreement by both parties and be completed on or before December 31, 2023.  
 
SECTION 5 – PAYMENT 
 
Payment shall be made by CITY to CONTRACTOR only for services rendered.  In 
consideration for the full performance of the services set forth in Exhibit A, CITY agrees 
to pay CONTRACTOR a fee of NOT TO EXCEED $139,590.00 Compensation shall be 
only for actual services provided based on the rates specified in Exhibit A.  
 
Compensation and Payment shall be made as follows: Contractor shall track all hours of 
Work and Direct Costs as incurred and invoice the City on the last day of each month. 
The City shall remit payment to Contractor within thirty (30) days from the date of 
invoice. Invoices must be submitted to Steve Duh Principal at the following address: PO 
Box 885 Orinda, CA 94563 or email: steve@conserverationtechnix.com.  
 
Contractor shall not submit billings for, and the City will not pay, any amount in excess 
of the compensation amount set forth above. If this maximum compensation amount is 
increased by amendment of this Agreement, the amendment must be fully effective 
before Contractor performs work subject to the amendment. No payment will be made 

18

mailto:steve@conserverationtechnix.com


PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT- Conservation Technix Inc.    Page 3 
Parks and Recreation Master Plan 

for any services performed before the beginning date or after the expiration date of this 
Agreement 
 
SECTION 6 – TERMINATION 
 
Without limitation to such rights or remedies as CITY shall otherwise have by law, CITY 
shall have the right to terminate this Agreement or suspend services for any reason 
upon written notice to CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR agrees to cease all work under 
this Agreement upon receipt of said notice. 
 
Upon termination of this Agreement, Contractor shall deliver to the City all documents, 
information, works-in-progress and other property that are or would be deliverables had 
the contract been completed. Upon the City’s request, Contractor shall surrender to 
anyone the City designates, all documents, research or objects or other tangible things 
needed to complete the Work. 
 
SECTION 7 – CONFIDENTIALITY 
 
All documents or information including, but not limited to, lists of customers and 
participants, future plans, and other business affairs provided by CITY to 
CONTRACTOR shall be considered as confidential.  CONTRACTOR shall not make 
any such documents or information available to any individual or organization not 
employed by CONTRACTOR or CITY without the written consent of CITY before any 
such release.  CONTRACTOR shall not use any such documents or information for any 
purpose other than providing the services set forth in this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 8 – CONTRACTOR’S STATUS 
 
It is expressly agreed that in the performance of the professional services required 
under this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall at all times be considered an independent 
contractor, under control of CITY as to the result of the work but not the means by which 
the result is accomplished. Nothing herein shall be construed to make CONTRACTOR 
an agent or employee of CITY while providing services under this Agreement. 
 
Section 9 – INDEMNITY 
 
CONTRACTOR agrees to hold harmless and indemnify CITY, its officers and 
employees from and against any and all claims, loss, liability, damage, and expense 
arising from the negligent, or claimed negligent, performance of this Agreement by 
CONTRACTOR, its officers or employees. CONTRACTOR agrees to defend CITY, its 
officers or employees against any such claims. This provision does not apply to claims, 
loss, liability or damage or expense arising from the sole negligence, or willful 
misconduct, of CITY. 
 
Section 10 – INSURANCE 
 

19



PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT- Conservation Technix Inc.    Page 4 
Parks and Recreation Master Plan 

CONTRACTOR shall provide and maintain: 
 
A. Commercial General Liability Insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 

per occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate.  
 

B. Consultant shall maintain automobile liability insurance covering bodily injury and 
property damage for all activities of the Consultant arising out of or in connection 
with the Services to be performed under this Agreement, in an amount not less 
than one million dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limit for each occurrence. 
 

C. If applicable, Workers Compensation in at least the minimum statutory limits. 
 

D. All insurance shall: 
 

1. Include CITY as an additional insured with respect to this Agreement and the 
performance of services in this Agreement. 

 
2. Be primary with respect to any other insurance or self-insurance programs of 

CITY and be non-contributory and waive subrogation rights. 
 

3. Be evidenced, prior to commencement of services, by properly executed 
policy endorsements in addition to a certificate of insurance provided to CITY. 

 
4. No changes in insurance may be made without the written approval of CITY. 

 
SECTION 11 – NONASSIGNABILITY 
 
Both parities recognize that this Agreement is for the personal services of 
CONTRACTOR and cannot be transferred, assigned, or subcontracted by 
CONTRACTOR without the prior written consent of CITY. 
 
SECTION 12 – WAIVERS 
 
The failure of either party to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not be 
construed as a waiver or limitation of the party’s right to subsequently enforce and 
compel strict compliance with every provision of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 13 – NOTICES 
 
All notices hereunder shall be given in writing and mailed, postage prepaid, addressed 
as follows: 
 
TO CITY:   TO CONTRACTOR: 
City of Woodburn  Conservation Technix Inc.  
Jesse Cuomo, Community Services Director  Steve Duh 
270 Montgomery Street  PO BOX 12726 

20



PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT- Conservation Technix Inc.    Page 5 
Parks and Recreation Master Plan 

Woodburn, OR  97071  Portland, OR 97212 
  
SECTION 14 – STATE PUBLIC CONTRACT PROVISIONS 
 
All requirements of ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, and 279C including but not limited to 
the following, as applicable, are incorporated herein by reference. 
 
A. If CONTRACTOR fails, neglects or refuses to make prompt payment of any claim 

for labor or services furnished by any person in connection with this Contract as 
such claim becomes due, CITY may pay such claim to the person furnishing the 
labor or services and charge the amount of the payment against funds due or to 
become due CONTRACTOR by reason of the Contract. The payment of a claim 
in the manner authorized above shall not relieve the CONTRACTOR or its surety 
from its obligation with respect to any unpaid claims. 

 
B. CONTRACTOR and its subcontractors, if any, are subject to Oregon Workers’ 

Compensation Law, which requires all employers that employ subject workers 
who work under this Contract in the State of Oregon to comply with ORS 656.017 
and provide the required workers’ compensation coverage, unless such 
employers are exempt under ORS 656.126. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that 
each of its subcontractors, if any, complies with these requirements. 

 
C. CONTRACTOR shall, upon demand, furnish to the CITY, written proof of 

workers’ compensation insurance coverage. CONTRACTOR is required to 
submit written notice to the CITY thirty (30) days prior to cancellation of said 
coverage. 

 
D. CONTRACTOR is engaged as an independent contractor and will be responsible 

for any federal or state taxes applicable to any payments made under this 
Contract.  
 

E. Pursuant to ORS 279B, CONTRACTOR specifically represents and warrants that 
CONTRACTOR has complied with all applicable federal, state, and city tax laws, 
including but not limited to ORS 305.620 and ORS chapters 316, 317 and 318.   
 

F. CONTRACTOR covenants to comply with all tax laws referenced above during 
the term of this contract and that any failure to comply is an express breach and 
City may terminate this Contract and seek damages as allowed herein or under 
applicable law. 

 
G. CONTRACTOR agrees and certifies that it is a corporation in good standing and 

licensed to do business in the State of Oregon. CONTRACTOR agrees and 
certifies that it has complied and will continue to comply with all Oregon laws 
relating to the performance of CONTRACTOR’s obligations under this Contract. 

 
H. CONTRACTOR shall: 

21



PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT- Conservation Technix Inc.    Page 6 
Parks and Recreation Master Plan 

 
1. Make payment promptly, as due, to all persons supplying to the 

CONTRACTOR labor and material for the prosecution of the work provided 
for in the contract documents; 

 
2. Pay all contributions or amounts due to the State Accident Insurance Fund 

incurred in the performance of this Contract; 
 
3. Not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the CITY on 

account of any labor or material furnished; and 
 
4. Pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from employees 

pursuant to ORS 316.167. 
 
I. The CONTRACTOR shall promptly as due, make payment to any person, co-

partnership or association or corporation furnishing medical, surgical and hospital 
care or other needed care and attention, incident to sickness or injury, to the 
employee of such CONTRACTOR, of all sums which the CONTRACTOR agrees 
to pay for such services and all moneys and sums which the CONTRACTOR 
collected or deducted from the wages of employees pursuant to any law, contract 
or Agreement for the purpose of providing or paying for such service. 

 
J. The CONTRACTOR shall pay employees for overtime work performed under the 

contract in accordance with ORS 653.010 to 653.261 and the Fair Labor 
Standards Act of 1938 (29USC201 et. seq.). 

 
K. An employer must give notice to employees who work on a contract for services 

in writing, either at the time of hire or before commencement of work on the 
contract, or by posting a notice in a location frequented by employees, of the 
number of hours per day and days per week that the employees may be required 
to work. 

L. CONTRACTOR will comply with 279.835 et seq. in the procurement of products 
and services from a nonprofit agency for disabled individuals. 

 
SECTION 15 – AGREEMENT CONTAINS ALL UNDERSTANDINGS; AMENDMENT 
 
This document represents the entire and integrated Agreement between CITY and 
CONTRACTOR and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, and 
agreements, either written or oral. 
 
No waiver, consent, modification or change of terms of this Agreement shall bind either 
party unless in writing and signed by both parties. Such waiver, consent, modification or 
change, if made, shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific 
purpose given. The failure of the City to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall 
not constitute a waiver by the City of that or any other provision. 
 

22



PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT- Conservation Technix Inc.    Page 7 
Parks and Recreation Master Plan 

 
SECTION 16 – GOVERNING LAW 
 
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Oregon. Any claim, 
action, suit or proceeding (collectively, "Claim") between the City and Contractor that 
arises from or relates to this Agreement shall be brought and conducted solely and 
exclusively within the Circuit Court of Marion County for the State of Oregon. Contractor 
hereby agrees to the in personam jurisdiction of such court and waives any claims of an 
inconvenient forum 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, CITY and CONTRACTOR have executed this Agreement the 
day and year written. 
 
CITY OF WOODBURN:  CONTRACTOR:  
  Conservation Technix Inc.  
 
 
 
By:   By:   
     
Print:  Print: Steve Duh 
Title:    Title:  Principal 
 
Date:    Date:    
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

23



PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT- Conservation Technix Inc.    Page 8 
Parks and Recreation Master Plan 

Exhibit A 

24



Exhibit A

25



Exhibit A

26



Exhibit A

27



Exhibit A

28



Exhibit A

29



Exhibit A

30



Exhibit A

31



Exhibit A

32



Exhibit A

33



Exhibit A

34



Exhibit A

35



Exhibit A

36



Exhibit A

37



Exhibit A

38



Exhibit A

39



Exhibit A

40



Exhibit A

41



Exhibit A

42



Exhibit A

43



Exhibit A

44



Exhibit A

45



Exhibit A

46



Exhibit A

47



Exhibit A

48



Exhibit A

49



Exhibit A

50



Exhibit A

51



Exhibit A

52



Exhibit A

53



Exhibit A

54



Agenda Item 
 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ______ City Attorney ______ Finance _____ 

   November 14, 2022 
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator  
 
FROM: Curtis Stultz, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Additional Contingency Funds for the West Hayes Street 

Improvements Project 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize an additional $200,000 in contingency funds for the ongoing West 
Hayes Street Improvements Project.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
This project is included in the adopted FY 22/23 budget and includes a complete 
reconstruction of West Hayes Street between Cascade Drive and North Settlemier 
Avenue. The City Council awarded the construction contract, valued at 
$3,108,266.60, to Knife River Corporation – NW at the May 9, 2022, meeting. The 
Council also approved $300,000 as a contingency for potential change orders. 
 
The project is approximately 35% complete, and four (4) change orders have 
been approved, totaling $224,992.33. The bulk of the costs, $201,465.33, are 
associated with a single change order. After bidding, it was discovered that 
approximately 430 linear feet of existing storm line, which was not anticipated to 
be replaced, was in poor condition and needed replacement.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Authorizing the contingency funds will allow the Public Works Department to 
approve any necessary change orders in a timely manner so as not to delay the 
Project. Originally anticipated to be a 10-14-month construction schedule, the 
Project remains on schedule with a substantial completion date of April 30, 2023.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The subject project is identified in the adopted fiscal year 2022/23 Budget and 
funded from the Street and Storm Capital Construction Fund - 363. 

55



Agenda Item 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ___x___ City Attorney __x____ 

November 14, 2022 

To:        Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 

From: Chris Kerr, Community Development Director 

Subject: Briefing on the Community Development Director’s approval of a 
Preliminary Partition and Street Exception application package for 156 
D Street (PAR 22-02 & EXCP 22-05) 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends no action and briefs the Council on this item pursuant to 
Woodburn Development Ordinance (WDO) Section 4.02.02.  The Council may call 
up this item for review if desired and, by majority vote, initiate a review of this 
decision.  

BACKGROUND: 

The subject property is approximately 0.65 acres and within the Medium Density 
Residential (RM) zone. Mill Creek runs along the east side of the property, with the 
Riparian Corridor and Wetlands Overlay District (RCWOD) covering a significant 
portion of it.  

The applicant applied for Preliminary Partition PAR 22-02 in order to partition the 
lot into three parcels for development of three townhouse dwellings along D 
Street, and a large tract behind them covering much of the 100-year floodplain. 
The tract will be deeded to the City as part of this partition. A Street Exception 
application was also included to request to modify street improvement 
requirements for the D Street and Young Street frontages. 

56

http://www.ci.woodburn.or.us/sites/default/files/WDO%20Ordinance%20-%20January%209%2C%202017.pdf#page=203


 
Aerial image of the subject property. 

 

 
Approved partition plan with parcels outlined in red. 

57



Agenda Item 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ___x___ City Attorney __x____ 

November 14, 2022 

To:        Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 

From: Chris Kerr, Community Development Director 

Subject: Briefing on the Planning Commission approval of a Variance 
application for AWARE Foodbank at 152 Arthur Street (VAR 22-10) 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends no action and briefs the Council on this item pursuant to 
Woodburn Development Ordinance (WDO) Section 4.02.02.  The Council may call 
up this item for review if desired and, by majority vote, initiate a review of this 
decision.  

BACKGROUND: 

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on November 10, 2022 and 
unanimously approved the Variance (VAR) application with the conditions 
recommended by staff through the staff report. No public testimony was 
received.  

The subject property is 152 Arthur St, within the Downtown Development and 
Conservation (DDC) zone. It was originally developed in 1910 with a commercial 
building. Marion-Polk Food Share Inc. purchased the property in 2012 for the 
AWARE Foodbank. A fire significantly damaged the building on August 18, 2021, 
and it was later demolished in August 2022. City staff reviewed and approved a 
land use application package on October 13, 2022 to redevelop the AWARE 
Foodbank (DR 22-10 & PLA 22-06). The approved development included a 
condition of approval to bury the existing power lines along Arthur Street or pay 
a fee in-lieu. 

The applicant submitted a Variance application to request to maintain the power 
lines as they exist today (not bury nor pay a fee in-lieu). The Planning Commission 
approved this request. 

58

http://www.ci.woodburn.or.us/sites/default/files/WDO%20Ordinance%20-%20January%209%2C%202017.pdf#page=203


 
Artistic rendering of the approved redevelopment (DR 22-10 & PLA 22-06). 

 
 
 

 
Existing power lines along Arthur Street. 

 
 

59



Agenda Item 
 

 

 
Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ___x___ City Attorney __x____ 
 

November 14, 2022 
 

 
To:              Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 
 
From: Chris Kerr, Community Development Director     
 
Subject: Briefing on the Planning Commission approval of a Design Review, 

Street Exception, and Variance application package for “Woodburn 
Apartments” at 119 N. Pacific Hwy (DR 22-05, EXCP 22-07, & VAR 22-06) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends no action and briefs the Council on this item pursuant to 
Woodburn Development Ordinance (WDO) Section 4.02.02.  The Council may call 
up this item for review if desired and, by majority vote, initiate a review of this 
decision.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on November 10, 2022 and 
unanimously approved the Design Review (DR), Street Exception (EXCP), and 
Variance (VAR) application package with the conditions recommended by staff 
through the staff report. Two individuals submitted testimony – Carol Callahan & 
Tim Vermeire at 1072 Young St.  
 
The subject property, 119 N. Pacific Hwy, is an undeveloped 1.42-acre property in 
the Mixed Use Village (MUV) zoning district. The approved project is a 35-unit 
multifamily residential apartment building with site improvements for parking and 
landscaping, as well as a public path along the south property line to promote a 
pedestrian-oriented environment within the MUV zone. The development will 
utilize a single driveway for access into the site. As part of the approval, the 
developer will grant a private access easement over the driveway to benefit 
adjacent properties, which facilitates City and ODOT access management 
priorities along Hwy 99E. The Commission approved the applicant’s Street 
Exception request for modified street improvement requirements along the N. 
Pacific Highway frontage, as well as the applicant’s Variance request to remove 
the garage parking requirement for multifamily dwellings. 
 

60

http://www.ci.woodburn.or.us/sites/default/files/WDO%20Ordinance%20-%20January%209%2C%202017.pdf#page=203


 
Aerial view of the subject property 

 

 
Site plan 

61



 

 
Artistic rendering 

 

62



Agenda Item 
 

 

 
Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ___x___ City Attorney __x____ 
 

November 14, 2022 
 

 
To:              Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 
 
From: Chris Kerr, Community Development Director    
 Colin Cortes, AICP, CNU-A, Senior Planner 
 
Subject: Call-Up Briefing:  Planning Commission decision on a Planned Unit 

Development & Subdivision application package for Mill Creek 
Meadows at 1490 Brown St (PUD 22-01 & SUB 22-01) 

 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff briefs the Council on this item pursuant to Woodburn Development 
Ordinance (WDO) Section 4.02.02.  (The Council may call up this item for review if 
desired and, by majority vote, initiate a review of this Commission decision.) 
 
Background: 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on November 10, 2022 and 
unanimously approved the consolidated applications package (Type III) with 
the conditions recommended by staff through the staff report published 
November 3. 
 
Images 
See the next few pages for an aerial photo and site plans. 
 

63

https://www.woodburn-or.gov/dev-planning/page/woodburn-development-ordinance-wdo
https://www.woodburn-or.gov/dev-planning/page/woodburn-development-ordinance-wdo


Page 2 of 7 

 
County aerial with subject property outlined in pink 
 

64



Page 3 of 7 

 
Site plan (north public land in darker green; middle light green is a private alley, not landscaped 
area) 
 

65



Page 4 of 7 

 
Site plan (north hatched area indicates minor wetlands along the drainage way) 
 
 

66



Page 5 of 7 

 
Close-up of public land improvements on Tracts A & B (including Mill Creek Greenway Trail 
segment east of Brown St, south spur path to Spring Ave, benches, picnic benches, bicycle 
parking, dog waste station, drinking fountain, picnic shelter, trash receptacle, wayfinding 
signage, and shade trees) 
 
 
Project Description 
The project redevelops three demolished rural homesteads of approximately 
18.04 acres along the southerly dead-end of Brown Street into 95 dwellings as 80 
houses and 15 townhouses.  The development extends Brown Street to the south 
property line.   
 
The northern area of the site contains an east-west drainage way, with minor 
wetlands, that drains west from the Boones Crossing development over graveled 
Brown Street east off the site into Mill Creek. It also contains an existing City pump 
station along the south side of the drainage way. The drainage way and pump 
station will remain.   
 
The developer is dedicating to the City/public the area along the drainage way 
as Tracts A & B and improving it with a segment of the Mill Creek Greenway Trail 
and related amenities and support facilities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

67



Page 6 of 7 

Street Improvements  
The developer, besides extending Brown Street to the south property line, will 
construct also local streets a little narrower than usual that accommodate on-
street parallel parking on one side of each local street.   
 
The developer also will be the first to construct a block-and-a-half long segment 
of the “South Arterial” that the Transportation System Plan (TSP), which the 
Council adopted in 2019, as Project R29 describes as a minor arterial road and 
TSP Figures 2 & 3 illustrate as an east-west crosstown road connecting OR 99E / 
N. Pacific Highway and Parr Road over the next approximately 20 years. 
 
Both Brown Street and E. Traverse Road (the South Arterial segment) will have 8-
foot wide sidewalks. 
 
Staff and the developer worked diligently to produce a superior site 
development that includes features such as: 

1. Frontage/street improvements including enhanced public amenities in form 
of wider sidewalks along the major thoroughfares and wider landscape 
strips along the block faces with townhouses; 

2. Street stubs that allow a logical network for future development to extend; 
3. Two street connections with Brown Street including an extension of Spring 

Boulevard east from the Boones Crossing PUD; 
4. Lessened driveway curb cuts through shared driveways at flag lots and 

townhouse lots; 
5. Remediation of the riparian corridor of the west tributary of Mill Creek 

through invasive groundcover removal (e.g. Himalaya blackberry) and 
restorative plantings; 

6. Walking and cycling wayfinding signage;  
7. Tree preservation or fees in-lieu; 
8. Fees towards City bus service; 
9. Dedication of 5.18 acres of public land along the drainage way that drains 

east off the site into Mill Creek; and 
10. Construction of a segment of the Mill Creek Greenway Trail east of Brown 

Street, tree plantings along the trail, and related improvements such as a 
modest shelter of 400 square feet and installation of amenities or trail 
support facilities such as benches, picnic benches, bicycle parking, a dog 
waste station, a drinking fountain, and a trash receptacle. 

   
 
 

68



Page 7 of 7 

Zoning 
The subject property is in the Residential Single Family (RS) zoning district. 
 
Testimony 
Besides the applicant, no one testified. 
 
Appeal 
Any of the parties with standing can appeal the Commission final decision per 
WDO 4.02.01B no later than 12 calendar days after staff mails the Commission 
final decision that the Commission chair signed – no later than November 28 
likely – and the Council would make a determination on the appeal after 
holding another noticed public hearing. 

69


	October 24, 2022
	Liquor License App - Super Mercado Las Tarascas
	Liquor License App - Woodburn Lanes
	memo - 2022 - 10October
	270 Montgomery Street        Woodburn, Oregon 97071          (503) 982-5246

	333 S Woodland Easement - November 14
	Attachments

	PUE Agreement for Woodburn Expansion Project - Fully Executed
	11.14.22 Parks and Recreation Masterplan Contract Award - Staff Report
	PSA - Conservation Technix Inc_(m.g.)(jzc)
	Conservation Technix
	W. Hayes Additional Contingency
	call-up briefing - PAR 22-02 EXCP 22-05
	City Council Agenda Item call-up briefing - VAR 22-10 (003)
	City Council Agenda Item call-up briefing - DR 22-05 etc (002)
	City Council Agenda Item call-up briefing - PUD 22-01 Mill Creek Meadows draf



